CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION AGENDA
Wednesday, April 2, 2014
Town Hall Room
Meridian Municipal Building
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864

Work Session

IR

Call the work session to order at 6:30 p.m.

Approval of the work session agenda

Review of the minutes of the March 5, 2014 work session/regular meeting
Preparation for the awards presentation

Public remarks

Temporary adjournment

Regular Meeting

RN~

10.

1.
12.
13.

Call the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

Welcome Commissioner McConnell

Approval of the regular meeting agenda

Approval of the minutes of the March 6, 2014, work session/regular meeting
Presentation of the 2014 Environmental Stewardship Awards to:

= 2013 Ride of Silence Planning Committee consisting of Township residents
Tim Potter, Mike Unsworih, Bob Lovell, and Rick Brown

v Laurie Kaufman

»  David Caszatt

= |TC Holdings Corporation

Green Themes presentation by LeRoy Harvey on “The Meridian Township Energy
Team"”
Public remarks
Chair's Report
»  Study group report to the Planning Commission

Communications/staff report
s Spring Recycling Event will be Saturday, April 26, 2014
o 2014 Ride of Silence to be held on Wednesday, May 21, 2014
¢ Michigan Energy Fair in Mason

Other Business
¢ Resolution of appreciation for Shari Anderson

Study groups/liaison reports
Public remarks
Adjournment

Work Session Continuation

1.

2.
3.
4.

Call the work session back to order upon conclusion of the regular meeting
Discussion on the Commission’s role and responsibilities

Public remarks

Adjournment




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION MINUTES
Meridian Municipal Bullding

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 46864-1198

March 5,

2014 - draft

WORK SESSION

PRESENT: Chair Jackson and Commissioners Searl, Anderson, Scherbarth, Kielbaso, Sarver,

and Moran.

ABSENT: None

STAFF

PRESENT: Richard F. Brown, Jr., AICP, Associate Planner

OTHERS
PRESENT: None

CALL WORK SESSION TO ORDER

Chair Jackson called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.

APPROVAL OF THE WORK SESSION AGENDA

The Work Session agenda was approved without objection.

REVIEW OF THE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 15, 2014 WORK SESSION AND
REGULAR MEETING '

No changes

DISCUSSION ON 2014 ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP AWARD NOMINEES

The commission reviewed the nominees and decided to approve all but one, who was
included in one of the other nominations for a group.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMISSION

Commissioner Scherbarth summarized his findings related to the duties and
responsibilities of the Commission.

PUBLIC REMARKS

None
ADJOURNMENT

Work session adjourned without objection at 7:02 p.m.




- CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION MINUTES
Meridian Municipal Building

March 5, 2014 - draft

REGULAR MEETING

PRESENT: Chair Jackson and Commissioners Moran, Sarver, Anderson, Kielbaso,
Scherbarth, and Searl

ABSENT: None

STAFF
PRESENT: Richard F. Brown, Jr., AICP, CBSP Associate Planner

OTHERS
PRESENT: Marcia Horan of the East Lansing Council on the Environment

1. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

Chair Jackson called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

2, APPROVAL OF THE REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

« MOTION by Commissioner Sarver to approve the agenda. Supported by
Commissioner Kielbaso. Approved 7-0.

3. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 15, 2014 WORK SESSION AND
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

* MOTION by Commissioner Sarver to approve the minutes with corrections.
Supported by Commissioner Scherbarth. Approved 7-0.

5. GREEN THEMES DISCUSSION ENTITLED "QUR COMMON INTERESTS” WITH
MARCIA HORAN, CHAIR OF THE EAST LANSING COMMISSION ON THE
ENVIRONMENT

6. PUBLIC REMARKS
None
7. CHAIR'S REPORT
Summarized the joint meeting held on February 18",

8. COMMUNICATIONS/STAFFE REPORT

Associate Planner Brown summarized the following:

s Spring recycling event on April 26"
e 2014 Ride of Silence on May 21*




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION MINUTES
March &, 2014

Page 2

13.

14.

15,

° Nort'nination for Tri-Gounty Environmental Leadership Awards are due by March
21°

Article provided on stopping invasive species

Attended the February Energy Committee meeting on the 28"

Michigan Energy Fair in Mason on June 27" and 28"

New MSU Credit Union branch on Jolly Road to have 12 pervious parking spaces.

OTHER BUSINESS
Brief discussion on a possible tree canopy study.
¢  MOTION by Commissioner Kielbaso to determine the cost and time required (if
any) to have a tree canopy study conducted of the Township. Supported by
Commissioner Scherbarth. Approved 7-0..

STUDY GROUPS/LIAISON REPORTS

Commissioner Kielbaso provided a year end summary of 2013 accomplishments of the
Land Preservation Advisory Board.

PUBLIC REMARKS

None

ADJOURNMENT

¢  MOTION by Commissioner Kielbaso to adjourn the Regular Meeting. Supported by
Commissioner Sarver. Approved 7-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m.




March 21, 2014

Dr. Pat Henning Jackson
Chair, Planning Commission
Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M1 48864

Dear Ms. Jackson and members of the Planning Commission:

In response the request by the Planning Commission, on Wednesday evening, 19 March 2014, a study
group of the Environmental Commission (EC) walked the parcel at the SE corner of Okemos Road and
Central Park Drive to understand the Fire Station plans in context. This group comprised Jim Kielbaso,

. internationally renowned professor of forestry at MSU, and Bill McConnell, also internationally known
for his work on land use and sustainability, especially at the interface between human settlements and
natural areas. Frank Walsh, Meridian Township Manager, and Ned Jackson, EC chair, were also present,
along with cameraman Connor Hansen. The EC study group’s comments are as follows:

The group surveyed the staked outline of the building plan, looking to see how it fit into the landscape
and its potential impacts on trees and wetlands in particular. Having now seen three layouts for this
station on the property, we did conclude that this one is the best to date in terms of minimizing losses of
trees and overall area of the footprint. Is it the best of all possible arrangements or sites in the township?
The EC is not in a position to judge that, Though we have been told that various other sites were
considered in the process that led to this location’s selection, EC involvement in discussions regarding
the fire station design did not begin until after the land parcel to be built on was defined.

Tn examining the plan, we view the building footprint and the parking Iot outlines as two separate issues,
with the parking layout offering more “wiggle room” to adjust to minimize tree losses.

Building footprint: Overall, the staked outlines appear to avoid a need to remove too many mature trees.
However, the site walk was needed to confirm this point; the plans we have do not show trees currently
within the design footprint. There is a mature red maple within the northeast corner of the proposed
building outline that might be protected by a slight shift south or small counterclockwise rotation of the
footprint—a desirable goal. We note that there is no formal requirement that the building be constructed
with walls exactly parallel to the road.

As regards the building’s design (drawing in hand only shows footprint), we reiterate the values
expressed in our letter from 2013, attached below.,

Parking areas: As drawn, the parking layout includes 64 spaces, with about 40 in the south lot,
presumably to accommodate visitors to the community center proposed for the south end of the building.
While the inclusion of a community center seems promising, we note that this lot size is about 2/5 of the
number for the entire combined township offices, public works, and police department parking; we
therefore encourage consideration of a design that minimizes the number (and therefore paved area) of
spots, while meeting design standards for such facilities. In the same vein, bike parking should be
included in the plans.




Given the close proximity to the wetland border to the south, it will be critical to ensure that water flow
and detention controls (rain gardens, swales, detention tanks/pools) meet or exceed all standards to avoid
runoff into and pollution of the wetland that borders on the south side. Vehicle and equipment washing
should be restricted to indoor areas with discharge to sanitary sewer. We thank manager Walsh for his
expressed willingness/desire to continue the dialogue as lot design and paving plans are finalized.

Entrances/approaches: The proposed Central Park Drive entrance for equipment return and visitor access
is angled in a way that minimizes direct exposure to view from the street. The exact positioning of this
drive as drawn, the plans also show plantings to provide a further buffer to sight and sound around this
access. Arborvitae was mentioned as the currently envisioned candidate, but it is strongly attractive to
deer. We recommend that these plantings should be native species chosen not only for natural beauty
and screening functions, but also to avoid attracting deer.

Concerns have been expressed by the neighbors regarding the wetland, noise (e.g. from sirens), and
traffic perturbations. Though the EC has no real expertise in the latter two aveas, it is clear from the map
that the design as laid out does respect the wetland boundaries. Assuming the normal design
laws/standards are met for control of water flow from the building and paved surfaces, this construction
should not lead to flooding or damaging impacts to the wetland.

The EC’s formal purview is evaluation of the proposed plans in terms of their impacts to vegetation,
land and water/wetland areas. Though there are design details regarding things like energy efficiency
and light pollution considerations that remain of interest to the EC, as noted in the earlier letter, those
were not part of this site study. As noted above, the drawings we have available to us only show the
footprint of the proposed structure and parking areas.

Thank you for your request. I plan to attend the upcoming Monday evening meeting of the Planning
Commission to answer any questions or provide additional details.

Sincerely,

Ned Jackson
Environmental Commission Chair

Ce:

Jim Kielbaso
Biil McConnell
Rick Brown




January 16, 2013

Raymond Severy, P.E.
Director

Public Works Administration
Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, MI 48864

Dear Mr. Severy:

In its January 16, 2013 meeting, the Environmental Commission decided to express its ideals regarding
the construction of the new fire station at the SE corner of Okemos Road and Central Park Drive.

With the new construction on this site, the Charter Township of Meridian has a unique opportunity to
include environmentally-friendly features up front in the process with the potential for significant
environmental, economic and social benefits to Meridian Township. We affirm and applaud the goal,
stated in the RFP, to build an energy efficient and sustainable building of which the community can be
proud. Ideally, the new facility would meet the criteria for LEED certification, whether or not such
certification is explicitly sought.

As part of the design and planning phases of this project, we ask that you please consider the following
features:
» Low Impact Development
Complete Street Guidelines
Green roof
Recycling of rain water to use within the facility
Addition of a Learning Center (classroom) for facility tours that could include the green features
of the building
Low impact lighting through the use of windows (natural light) as well as ceiling reflectors
Heating and cooling system options
Connection to local trails
Bike racks
Pervious pavement

YVVVVY YVVY

In addition, we encourage the use of natural features only on unused land remaining on the site,

Possible reference sites:
hitp://fwww.irde.ore/buildineereen/default.asp
http/fwww.epa.gov/ereenbuilding/pubs/components.htmifenergy

Thank you for your consideration and for your willingness to inform us of pertinent planning meetings
regarding this project.

Sincerely,
Environmental Commission

Cc: Brett Dreyfus, Meridian Charter Township Clerk




RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION

At a regular mesting of the Environmental Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian,
Ingham County, Michigan, held on the 2nd day of April, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., local time.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following resolution was offered by Commissioner __ and supported by
Commissioner

WHEREAS, Shari Anderson served as an active member of the Environmental
Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian between January 2014 and March 2014; and

WHEREAS, Shari Anderson devoted her personal time to helping educate and inform the
general public on important and ongoing environmental issues in Meridian Township; and

WHEREAS, Shari Anderson’s service on the Environmental Commission has been
beneficial to Meridian Township, its residents, and its natural environment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION OF
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN HEREBY extends its best wishes to Shari Anderson
in her future endeavors and expresses its gratitude for her service to the community.

ADOPTED: YEAS:

NAYS:
STATE OF MICHIGAN y
_ )ss
COUNTY OF INGHAM )

|, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chairperson of the Environmental
Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular
meeting of the Environmental Commission on the 2nd day of April, 2014.

James E. Jackson, Chairperson
Environmental Commission




MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION
RULES OF PROCEDURE
RULE 1. AUTHORIZATION.

The Meridian Township Environmental Commission, hereinafter called the Commission, is
established pursuant to Chapter 121 of the Code of Ordinances, Charter Township of Meridian.

RULE 2. RESPONSIBILITIES.
The Environmental Commission shall:

a. Advise the Township Board, officials and staff on matters pertaining to
environmental protection and water conservation, management of natural resources and
preservation of open space.

b. Identify ways to ensure and improve the quality of the Township's environment in
the interest of the public health, safety and general welfare.

C. Develop educational and outreach programs for local schools, businesses and
individuals to encourage environmental stewardship, protect property values and avoid
unnecessary financial costs for correcting environmental problems.

d. Review and offer recommendations for Township ordinances, operating
procedures and programs in order to achieve the stated purposes in Chapter 121 and
ensure compliance with applicable state and federal environmental laws.

e. Assume the duties of the Township Wetland Board as outlined in Section 105-
16{c) of the Township Code of Ordinances.

f. Offer recommendations for the Towhship budget as it pertains to the Commission.
ga. Assume such other duties as may be assigned by the Township Board.
h. Encourage and utilize the involvement of residents and experts in achieving the

environmental goals of the Township.
RULE 3. COMPOSITION, TERMS AND VACANCIES.

3.1 Composition and Appointmenf. The Commission shall consist of seven (7)
members appointed by the Township Board. Members shall be Township residents and
shall have an interest or expertise in natural resources, environmental protection or
ecology. [n addition, two (2) youth members shall serve as non-voting, ex-officio
members,

3.2 Terms. Terms of appointment shall be for three (3) years or until a successor is
appointed, except that three (3) members of the first commission shall be appointed for a

1 1/31/01, as Revised




term of one (1) year and two (2) for a term of two (2) years. Youth members shall serve
one (1) year terms.

3.3 Unexpired Terms. A member appointed to fill an unexpired term shall serve for
the remainder of the unexpired term or until a successor is appointed.

RULE 4. REMOVAL FROM OFFICE.

A member may be removed from office by the Township Board for nonperformance of duty or
misconduct in office, following written charges and after a public hearing.

RULE 5. OFFICERS.

51 Selection. At its first meeting in January, the Commission shall select a chair and
a vice chair from among its members, except that officers selected in June, 1995 will serve
until their successors are chosen in January, 1997.

5.2 Terms. Term of office shall be one (1) year, or until a successor is selected.
53 Duties.

a. The chair shall preside at all meetings, authorize calls for special meetings, and perform
such other duties as may be specified by the Commission.

b. The vice-chair shall act in the capacity of the chair in the chair's absence.

c. In the event the office of the chair becomes vacant, the vice chair shall succeed to this
office for the unexpired term and the Commission shall select a successor to the office of
vice-chair for the unexpired term.

RULE 6. COMMITTEES.

6.1 Purpose. The Commission may establish committees necessary to assist it in
fulfiling its responsibilities and shall define the purpose, functions, tenure, selection of
chair, meeting and reporting requirements for each committee. The establishment of
committees shall not preclude the use of individuals or study groups in the exploration or
research of specific environmental issues.

6.2  Appointments. Committee members shall be appointed by the chair, with

concurrence of the Commission. A committee may be discharged from its responsibilities
by the Commission

2 1/31/01, as Revised




6.3  Public Participation. ~Commitiees shall meet all requirements for public
participation and access to records as provided in Rule 7 of these Rules.

RULE 7. MEETINGS.

a

7.1 Requiar Meetings. At least one regular meeting will be held each month.

7.2  Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the chair or shall be called
at the written request of two (2) or more Commission members. The meeting notice shall
include the purpose of the special meeting. At least forty-eight (48) hours notice of special
meetings shall be given to Commission members,

7.3  Meeting Schedule. A schedule of regular meetings, including date, time and
place, shall be established for each calendar year and shall be made available to the
public in advance of said meetings. Changes in the schedule shall be posted for the
public.

7.4  Location. Meetings shall be held at a Township facility unless otherwise indicated.

7.5  Quorum. Four (4) members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business unless otherwise indicated in these rules or required by Township ordinance,
state or federal law. A member shall notify the chair or designated staff if the member will
be absent from a meeting.

7.6 Public Participation.

All regular and special meetings, work sessions or public hearings shall be open to the
public, unless otherwise provided for in Township ordinance, state or federal law.

Opportunity for public comment shall be provided in accordance with established
Commission or Township rules and procedures (See attached Exhibit A).

The chair may call to order any person who disrupts the orderly conduct of a meeting and
prohibit said person from further participation or attendance at such meeting.

7.7  Agenda.
An agenda shall be established for each meeting by the chair and designated Township

staff and be made available to the Commission and public in advance of the meeting. The
order of business shall be determined by the chair with concurrence of the Commission.

3 _ 1/31/01, as Revised




b. Agenda items to be considered at a special meeting shall be limited to those included in
the call-fo-meeting notice unless all members are present and vote otherwise.

7.8  Decisions. Providing a quorum is present, a simple majority of those present and
voting shall be required for Commission action, unless otherwise provided for in these
rules, other Township or state statutes or parliamentary authority, as adopted.

7.9  Records. Designated Township staff shall be responsible for minutes and other
official records of all Commission meetings and actions, including supporting
documentation. Notice of meetings, minutes and other records shall be available to the
public in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act (P.A. 442, 1976, as amended)
and Open Meetings Acts (P.A. 267, 1976, as amended).

RULE 8. PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY.

Roberts Rules of Order, Newly Revised, shall govern all questions of procedure not otherwise
provided for in these rules or by Township, state or federal law.

RULE 9. SUSPENSION OF RULES AND AMENDMENT.

9.1 Suspension. A rule may be suspended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of Commission
members present and voting at a meeting, provided said action is in accordance with
established state or federal law, Township ordinance and parliamentary authority.

9.2  Amendment. Rules not required by state or federal law or Township ordinance

may be amended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Commission, provided thirty (30) days
notice and an opportunity for comment is given to the public.

4 1/31/01, as Revised




EXHIBIT A: PROCEDURES FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT MEETINGS RULE 7.6

1.

The number of persons admitted to a meeting room will be in keeping with public safety
requirements and availability of space. Efforts will be made to provide adequate room to
accommodate those in attendance.

Established protocols for public participation will be announced at the beginning of the
meeting. :

Opportunity to speak will be granted either under Public Remarks or during a public
hearing, as most appropriate.

Reasonable time limits may be allotted for public comments, in keeping with other
business which must be considered at a particular meeting.

A member of the public will be provided no less than three minutes to speak.
Those completing a request form in writing shall be called upon first to speak.

Members of the public will identify themselves by name and address prior to presenting
their comments.

Wiritten communications will be read into the record during a meeting when requested by
the author. All written communications will become part of the Commission record.

The Chair, without objections from the Commission, may invite members of the public to

participate in informal discussion on al! or selected agenda items during Commission work
sessions. :

5 1/31/01, as Revised




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 2 - ADMINISTRATION
ARTICLE VI. - BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

DIVISION 3. - ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION

DIVISION 3. - ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION ¥
Sec. 2-226. - Establishment.

Sec, 2-227. - Purpose.
Sec. 2-228. - Membership; terms of office,

Sec. 2-229. - Compensation.

Sec. 2-230. - Organization and procedures.
Sec. 2-231. - Duties.
Secs, 2-232—2-255. - Reserved.

Sec. 2-226. - Estahlishment.

There is hereby created an environmentai commission for the township.
(Code 1974, § 121-1)

Sec. 2-227. - Purpose.

The purpose for the environmental commission is to advise the township in:

(1) Preventing poliution and encouraging the wise management of the natural resources of the
township in the interest of the public health, safety, and general welfare.

(2) Preserving open space and natural areas in the township for recreational and environmental
protection purposes.

(3) Promoting a healthy environment and thus promoting the longterm economic health of the
township, including protecting property values, and avoiding the high financial burden of
correcting environmental problems.

(4) Ensuring compliance with applicable state and federal environmental laws.
(6) Meeting the policies of the township board and its agencies.
{Code 1974, § 121-2)

Sec. 2-228. - Membership; terms of office.

The environmental commission shall consist of seven members, to be appointed by the township
board. Members shall be residents of the township and shall have an interest or expertise in natural
resources, environmental protection, or ecology. All members shall serve three-year terms, except that
three members of the first commission to be appointed shall serve a term of one year and two for a term
of two years. In addition two youth members shall be nonvoting, ex officio members of the environmental
cornmission. Their terms shall be for one year.

(Code 1974, § 121-3)

Meridian Charter Township, {ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 1




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 2 - ADMINISTRATION
ARTICLE V1. - BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

DIVISION 3. - ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION

Sec. 2-229. - Compensation.

Members of the environmental commission may be compensated at a rate to be determined by the
township board. Such rate of compensation, if any, shall be established and may be revised from time to
time by resolution of the township board.

" (Code 1974, § 121-4)

Sec. 2-230. - Organization and procedures.

The environmental commission shall be organized as follows:

(1

(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)

(€)

Chair. The environmental commission shall elect its chair from among the voting members and
create and fill such other of its offices as it may determine. The term of the chair shall be one
year with eligibility for reelection.

Quorum. A majority of the voting membership shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business.

Meetings. The environmental commission shall hold at least one regular meeting each month.
Special meetings may he held at the call of the chair or written request of two members of the
commission upon at least 48 hours' notice to the members thereof. All meetings shall be subject
to the Open Meetings Act (MCL 15.261 et seq.).

Rules of pracedure. The environmental commission shall adopt rules for the transaction of
business.

Records. The environmental commission shall keep minutes of its resolutions, findings, and
recommendations which shall be available to the public.

Budget and staff. The township board shall provide for staff support and a budget.

(Code 1974, § 121-5)

Sec. 2-231. - Duties.

The duties of the environmental commission shall include the following:

{1
(2)
(3)
(4)

(%)
(6)

Advise the township board, officials, and staff on matters pertaining to environmental protection,
management of natural resources, water conservation, and preservation of open space.

Review township ordinances, operating procedures, and activities fo identify conflicts with
stated purposes in this division, and propose improvements for township board consideration.

Develop educational and outreach programs for local agencies, businesses, institutions, and
individuals to encourage environmental stewardship.

Identify ways to ensure and improve the quality of the township's environment for the health and
pleasure of the residents.

Assume the duties of the township wetland board as outlined in_secticn 22-120(c).
Assume such other duties that may be assigned by the township board.

(Code 1974, § 121-6)

Meridian Charter Township, {Ingham Co.}, Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 2




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 2 - ADMINISTRATION
ARTICLE VI. - BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

DIVISION 3. - ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION

Secs. 2-232--2-255, - Reserved.

FOOTNGTE(S).

--e (B) -

Cross reference— Environment, ¢h. 22. (Back)

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 3




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE V. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY
Sec, 22-1186. - Definitions,

Sec. 22-117. - Findings.
Sec. 22-118. - Purpose.
Sec. 22-119. - Penalties and enforcement,

Sec, 22-120. - Existing nonconforming lots, uses and structures,

Sec. 22-121. - Township wetland inventory map,

Seg. 22-122. - Wetland delineation and vetification.

Sec, 22-123. - Duties of the environmental commission.
Secs. 22-124—22-150, - Reserved.

Sec. 22-116. - Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Aqualic life means vertebrates or invertebrates that are dependent on wetlands for some vital portion
of their life cycle, including any of the following: breeding, spawning, nesting, rearing of young, feeding,
and resting or protection.

Contiguous means any of the following:

(1) A permanent surface water connection or other direct contact with an inland lake, pond, river or
stream.

(2) A seasonal or intermittent direct surface water connection to an inland iake, pond, river or
stream.

(3) A wetland which is partially or entirely located within 500 feet of the ordinary high water mark of
an intand lake, pond, river or stream, uniess it is demonstrated by the property owner by clear
and convincing evidence that there is no relation whatever between the wetland and the intand
lake, pond, river or stream taking into the purposes of this article, as set forth in_section 22-118

(4) Two or more areas of wetland separated only by barriers, such as dikes, roads, berms or other
similar features, but only with any of the wetland areas contiguous under the criteria described
in subsection (1), (2) or (3) of this definition.

Deposit means to fill, place or dump.

Director of community planning and development means the director of community planning and
development for the township or his designee.

Environmental commission means the body created pursuant to_chapter 2, article VI, division 3, and
designated by the township board to advise the township on wetland issues.

Fill material means soil, rocks, sand,.or waste of any kind, or any other material which displaces soil
or water, or reduces water retention potential.

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 1




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV, - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

Infand fake, stream, river or pond means any of the following:

(1) A river or stream that has definite banks, a bed, and visible evidence of a continued flow or
continued occurrence of water.

(2) A natural or permanent artificial inland lake or impoundment that has definite banks, a bed, a
visible evidence of a continued occurrence of water, and a surface area of water

that is more than five acres, not including lakes constructed by excavating or diking dry land and
maintained for the sole purpose of cooling or storing water and not including lagoons for treating
polluted water.

(3) A natural or permanent artificial pond that has permanent open water with a surface area that is
more than one acre but less than five acres, not including ponds constructed by excavating or
diking dry land and maintained for the sole purpose of cooling or storing water and not including
lagoons used for freating polluted water,

Interested person means either:

(1) A resident of the township who will suffer an identifiable injury, loss, or potential loss as a result
of a wetland use permit decision; or

{2) An owner of property within 500 feet of the wetland that is the subject of a wetland use permit
decision.

Lof means land occupied or to be occupied by a building, structure, land use, or group of buildings,
together with such open space or yards as are required under the code of ordinances and having its
principal frontage upon a street.

Minor drainage includes ditching and tiling for the removal of excess soil meisture incidental to the
planting, cultivating, protecting, or harvesting of crops or improving the productivity of land in established
use for agriculture, horticulture, silviculture, or lumbering.

Mitigation of wetlands means:
(1) Methods for eliminating or reducing potential impact to regulated wetlands; or

(2) Creation of new wetlands of the same or similar function fo offset unavoidable loss of existing
wetlands to meet the township goa! of no net loss of wetlands.

Person means an individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, corpeoration, association, municipality,
of the state; an instrumentatity or agency of this state; the federal government, or an instrumentality or
agency of the federal government, or other legal entity.

Protected wetfands means any of the following:

(1) Wetlands, regardless of size, which are contiguous to any inland lake stream, river, or pond,
whether partially or entirely within the project site.

(2) Wetlands, regardiess of size, which are partially or entirely within 500 feet of the ordinary high
water mark of any inland lake, stream, river or pond, unless it is determined by the state
department of environmental quality that there is no surface or groundwater connection
between the wetland and the water body.

(3) Wetlands which are larger than fwo acres, whether partially or entirely contained within a lot,
and which are not contiguous to any inland lake, stream, river or pond.

{4) Wetlands, regardless of size, which are not contigucus to any inland lake, stream, river or pond,
if the state department of environmentat quality determines the protection of the wetland is

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.}, Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 2




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

essential to the preservation of the natural resources of the state from pollution, impairment or
destruction.

(5) Wetlands, equal to or greater than one-quarter acre and equal to or less than two acres in size,
which are not contiguous to any inland lake, stream, river or pond and are determined to be
essential to the preservation of the natural resources of the township as provided in_section 22~
166

Remove means to dig, dredge, suck, pump, buildoze, drag line, or blast.

Restorafion means to return from a disturbed or totally altered condition to a previously existing
natural or altered condition by some action of man.

Structure means any assembly of materials above or below the surface of the land or water,
including, but not limited to, buildings, bulkheads, piers, docks, landings, dams, waterway obstructions,
paving and roadways, poles, towers, cables, pipelines, drainage tiles, and other underground
installations.

Township board means the legislative body of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County,
Michigan.

Township environmental consultant means a person professionally knowledgeable in wetland
delineation and resource value assessment, wetland protection, wetland restoration and wetland
mitigation, appointed pursuant to section 3.4 of the township personne! policy to carry out certain duties
hereunder. Any firm or individual appointed on a contract basis shall be selected competitively under the
township purchasing policy.

Township wetland inventory map means the Meridian Township Wetland Inventory Map created to
comply with section 30308 (1), of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (MCL
324.30308). The fownship wetland inventory map is based on the National Wetland Inventory Map of the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the Michigan Resource Information System Mapping (MIRIS) of the state
department of natural resources, the soils maps of the soil conservation service, aerial photography and
on-site inspections.

Wetland means land characterized by the presence of water at a frequency and duration sufficient to
support, and that under norma! circumstances deoes support, wetland vegetation or aquatic life and
commonly referred to as a bog, swamp, or marsh.

Wetland vegetation means plants that exhibit adaptations to allow germination and growth with at
least their root systems in the water or saturated soils under normal conditions.

(Code 1974, § 105-3; Ord. No. 2002-02, § 1(105-3), 3-19-2002; Ord. No. 2003-11, § 1, 7-6-2003;
Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-16-2011)

Cross reference— Definitions generally, § 1-2,

Sec. 22-117. - Findings.

{a) The township board finds that wetlands are indispensable and fragile natural resources that provide
many public benefits, including maintenance of water quality through nutrient cycling and sediment
trapping as well as flood and stormwater runoff control through temporary water storage, slow
release, and groundwater recharge. [n addition, wetlands provide open space; passive outdoor
recreation opportunities; fish and wildlife habitat for many forms of wildlife, including migratory
waterfow!, and rare, threatened or endangered wildlife and plant species; and pollution treatment by
serving as biological and chemical oxidation basins.

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 3




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV, - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

(b) Preservation of the remaining township wetlands in a natural condition shall be and is necessary to

maintain hydrological, economic, recreational, and aesthetic natural resource values for existing and
future residents of the township, and, therefore, the township board declares a policy of no net loss
of wetlands. Furthermore, the township board declares a long-term goal of net gain of wetlands to be
accomplished through review of degraded or destroyed wetlands in the township and, through
cooperative work with landowners, using incentives and voluntary agreements to restore wetlands.

Pursuant to article. 4, section 52 of the Constitution of the State of Michigan, the conservation and
development of natural resources of the state is a matter of paramount public concern in the interest
of the health, safety, and general welfare of the people. Therefore, with authority from section
30307(4) of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (MCL 324.30307 et seq.), the
township board finds that this article is essential to the long-term health, safety, economic, and
general welfare of the people of the township and to the furtherance of the policies set forth in part
17 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (MCL 324.101 et seq.).

(Code 1974, § 106-1; Ord. No. 2002-02, § 1(105-1), 3-19-2002)

Sec. 22-118. - Purpose.

The purposes of this article are to provide for:

(1) The protection, preservation, replacement, proper maintenance, restoration, and use in
accordance with the character, adaptability, and stability of the township's wetlands in order to
prevent their pollution or contamination; minimize their disturbance and disturbance fo the
natural habitat therein; and prevent damage from erosion, siltation, and flooding.

(2) The encouragement of proper and reasonable economic use of wettands, the discouragement
and limitation of improper use, the reduction of financial burdens improper uses impose on the
community, the maintenance of harmonious and compatible land use balance within the
township, and the prevention of nuisance conditions that arise with the indiscriminate
development of wetlands.

(3) The coordination with, and support for, the enforcement of applicable federal, state, and county
statutes, ordinances, and regulations, including, but not limited to:

a. Part 303, Wetland Protection of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act
(MCL 324.30301 et seq.), enforced by the state department of environmental quality; and

b. Part 91 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (MCL 324.9101 et
seq.), enforced by the township. :

(4) Compliance with part 17 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act {MCL
324.1701 et seq.), which imposes a duty on government agencies and private individuals and
organizations to prevent or minimize the pollution, impairment or destruction of the natural
resources that is likely to be caused by their activities.

(5) The establishment of standards and procedures for the review and regulation of the use of
wellands.

(6) The issuance of wetland use permits for approved activities.

(7) A procedure for amending wetland use permits.

(8) A procedure for appealing decisions.

(8) The establishment of enforcement procedures and penalties for the violation of this article.

Meridian Charter Township, {Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 4




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

(10) Assurance that the right to reasonable use of private property is maintained.
(Code 1974, § 105-2; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-2), 3-19-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-119, - Penalties and enforcement.

(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(h)

In the event of a violation of this article, the township may commence a civil action for appropriate
relief, including injunctive relief. An action under this article may be brought in the circuit court for the
county. The court has jurisdiction to restrain the violation and to require compliance with this article.
In addition fo any other relief granted under this article, the court may impose a civil fine of not more
than $10,000.00 per day of violation. A person who violates an order of the court is subject to a civil
fine not {0 exceed $10,000.00 for each day of violation.

A person who violates this article is guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not more than
$2,500.00.

A person who willfully or recklessly violates a condition or limitation in a permit issued by the
township under this article, or a corporate officer who has knowiedge of or is responsible for a
violation, is guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not less than $2,500.00 nor more than
$25,000.00 per day of violation, or by imprisonment for not more than one year, or both. A person
who violates this article a second or subsequent time is guiity of a felony, punishable by a fine of not
more than $50,000.00 for each day of violation, or by imprisonment for not more than two years, or
both.

in addition to the penalties provided under subsections {a}, (b), and (c) of this section, the court may
order a person who violates this article to restore as nearly as possible the wetland that was affected
by the viclation to its original condition immediately before the violation. The restoration may include
the removal of fill material deposited in the wetland or the replacement of soll, sand, or minerals.

Whenever any work is performed contrary to the provision of this article or of a condition set forth in
a wetland use permit, the township manager or his agent shall order the work to cease by notice in
writing served on any persons engaged in the doing or causing such work to be performed, and any
such persons shall, upon receipt of the order, forthwith stop such work until authorized by the
township manager or his agent to proceed. In addition, if a person acts in violation of this article the
township may refuse a certificate of occupancy or other construction permits related to the project
whenever there is failure to comply with the provisions of this article.

The director of community planning and development or his agent shall have authority under this
article to enter upon privately owned land for the purpose of performing the township's duties under
this article and may take or cause fo be made such examinations, surveys or samplings as are
deemed necessary.

Law enforcement officials or other officials having the police power shall have 'authority to assist the
department of community planning and development in the enforcement of this article.

In the event of a violation of this article, the township board shall have the power to order wetland
restoration for the damaged or destroyed wetland area by the owner of the property affected or the
person or agent responsible for the violation. If the owner or person responsible does not complete
the restoration measures within the ordered period of time, the township board may order the
affected wetland restored to its prior condition and/or create or restore other wetlands for the
purpose of offsetting losses sustained as a result of this viclation. The owner or other person
responsible for the original violation shall be responsible to the township for the full cost of all such
remedial activity,

(Code 1974, § 105-19; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-19), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Meridian Charter Township, {Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 5




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

Sec. 22-120. - Existing nonconforming lots, uses and structures.

Building sites or lots, uses and structures lawfully existing on September 2, 1991, shall be subject to
the requirements of this article, except as follows:

(1

()

Any activity, structure, or use lawfully existing prior to September 2, 1991, but not in conformity
with the provisions of this article, may be continued, maintained and operated. No
nonconforming activity, structure or use shall be enlarged or increased or extended to occupy a
greater area of land than was occupied at the effective date of Ordinance No. 2011-04, from
which this article is derived without first obtaining a wettand use permit.

Any structure lawfully existing prior to September 2, 1991, if destroyed by any means to an
extent of more than 50 percent of its replacement costs, exclusive of the foundation, may be
reconstructed only in conformity with the provisions of this article. The estimated cost of
reconstruction shall be determined by the township chief building inspector. Persons aggrieved
by the determination of estimated replacement cost by the chief building inspector may appeal
such determination to the zoning board of appeals.

(Code 1974, § 105-9; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-9), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-121. - Township wetland inventory map.

The township wetland inventory map is a guide to the location of wetlands in the township. The map
shall be used in the administration of this article and chapter 86, article V.

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

The township wetland inventory map, together with all explanatory matter thereon and attached
thereto, as may be amended through the wetland verification and delineation process, is hereby
adopted by reference and declared to be part of this article. The township wetland inventory
map shall be on file in the department of community planning and development.

The township wetland inventory map shall serve as a general guide for the location of protected
wetlands. '

The township wetland inventory map does not create any legally enforceable presumptions
regarding whether property that is or is not included on the inventory map is or is not in fact a
wetland.

Map amendment process:

a. Any change to the township wetland inventory map, approved by the director of community
planning and development through verification or delineation, shall be added to the
township wetland inventory map on an annual basis.

b. The township shall ensure that each recorded owner of property on the property tax roll
shall be notified of any amendment to the township wetland inventory map on an annual
basis. The notice shall include the following information:

1. The maps have been amended.

The location to review the maps shall be indicated.

The owner's property may be designated as a wetland on the inventory map.
The township has an ordinance regulating wetlands.

S

The inventory map does not necessarily include all of the wetlands within the township
that may be subject to this article. ‘

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 6




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

(Code 1974, § 105-5, Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-5), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-122. - Wetland delineation and verification.

The township wetland inventory map shall be validated through the wetland delineation process or
the wetland verification process. The wetland delineation process shall be used to establish the actual
boundaries of wetiands by the township environmental consultant. The wetland verification process shall
be used to verify the boundaries of wetiands through the review by the township environmental consultant
of a wetland delineation prepared by a qualified professional or wetland consuitant.

Prior to issuance of a building permit or land development approval, the director of community
planning and development shali determine the necessity for establishing the boundary of wetlands based
on the proximity and relationship of the project to wetlands shown on the township wetland map.

{1} Wetland delineation process.

a. A property owner or an applicant with the property owner’s written permission shall submit
a wetland delineation application and fee authorized by the township board to the
department of community planning and development with the following material:

1. A survey, site plan, or plot plan drawn to an appropriate scale. The survey, site plan,
or plot plan shall include the following:

i.  Property lines and dimensions.

ii.  North arrow and scale.

iii. Existing topography contours depicted at two-foot intervals.

iv. Adjacent and on-site roads; railroads; and streams, lakes, and ponds.

v. Footprints of existing buildings, parking lots, accessory structures, and other
structures.

~vi. Any notable man-made or natural features along the suspected wetlands.
b. The property boundaries shall be clearly flagged or staked prior to the field investigation.

c. Upon receiving a complete application, the department of community planning and
development shall transmit the request to the township environmental consultant for a field
investigation. In the event that weather conditions prohibit the township environmental
consultant from conducting a thorough field investigation including the evaluation of
vegetation, soil, and hydrology, the application and fee will be held untit such time that the
review can be conducted.

d. ldentification, flagging, or staking of the wetland boundaries in the field shall be completed
by the township environmental consultant during a field investigation. An arc-map
compatible digital copy of the delineated wetland boundary shall be provided to the director
of community planning and development.

e. Wetland delineations completed by the township environmental consulitant shall be valid for
a period of three years from the date of the delineation report.

f.  In delineating wetland boundaries, all delineations shall apply the technical wetiand
delineation standards set forth in the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, January 1987
Wetland Delineation Manual, technical report y-87-1, and appropriate regional U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers supplements.

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 7




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

g. Wetlands under the jurisdiction of the department of environmental quality may need to
have the dealineation reviewed and approved by representatives of the state.

(2) Wetland verification process.

a. A property owner or an applicant with the property owner's written permission shall submit
a wetland verification application and fee authorized by the township board to the
department of community planning and development with the following material:

1. A survey, site plan, or plot plan that includes the following information:
i.  Property lines and dimensions.
ii.  North arrow and scale.
ii. Existing topography contours depicted at two-foot intervals.
iv. The boundary of all wetlands identified on the site.
v. Adjacent and on-site roads; railroads; and streams, lakes, and ponds.

vi. Footprints of existing buildings, parking lots, accessory structures, and other
structures.

vii. Surveyed points of reference.
vii. Any notable man-made or natural features along the wetland boundaries.

2. A wetland delineation report that is no more than three years old. The report shall at a
minimum include the following information:

i, Dominant vegetation in the free, sapling, shrub, and herb layers.
ii. Presence of or lack of accepted wetland hydrology layers.
ii.  Analysis of soil including a description of the soil profile to at least 20 inches.

iv. Comparison of county soil survey to the wetiand shown in a manner that allows
comparison to the township wetland inventory map.

v. A notation in the report whether potential off-site wetlands (within 40 feet of the
property line) can be observed from the subject site.

b. Upon receiving a complete application, the department of community planning and
development shall transmit the request to the township environmental consultant for a field
investigation. In the event that weather conditions prohibit the township environmental
consultant from conducting a thorough field investigation including the evaluation of
vegetation, soil, and hydrology, the application and fee will be held until such time that the
review can be conducted.

(Code 1974, § 105-6; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-6), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-123. - Duties of the environmental commission.
The environmental commission created pursuant to_chapter 2, article VI, division 3, shall perform the
following duties with regard to this article:

(1) Advise the township board, planning commission, and director of community planning and
development, as necessary, on wetland use permits, appeals of wetland use permits, and
mitigation plans.

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 8




(2)
(3)

(4)
)

(6)

(8)

- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

Serve in an advisory role in setting policy guidelines on wetland issues in the township.

Identify conflicts and propose solutions to resolve conflicts regarding wetland protection by
present township ordinances, township operating procedures, and township activities.

identify and propose solutions to problems associated with wetland management.

Provide recommendations to the director of community planning and development on map
administration.

Assist landowners who are interested in the voluntary protection of wetlands.

Promote wetland education at all levels. Develop education programs for the public and for
township schools. The program should promote the values of wetlands and awareness of the
hazards and threats to wetlands. The program should be particularly targeted to landowners
with wetlands and emphasize how hest fo protect wetland values on their property.

Coordinate a voluntary wetland stewardship program. Develop an adopt-a-wetland program for
interested citizens to participate more directly in preservation of specific wetlands.

(Code 1974, § 105-16; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-16), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Secs. 22-124—-—22-150. - Reserved.

Meridian Charter Township, {(Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 9




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT

DIVISION 2, - PERMIT
Sec. 22-151. - Activities requiring a wetland use permit,

Sec. 22-1562. - Activities not requiring a permit,

Sec, 22-1563. - Relationship to state and federal permits.,

Sec. 22-154. - Application reguirements for wetland use permis.

Sec. 22-185. - Method of review of wetland use permit application.

Sec. 22-168. - Criteria for wetlands under two acres in size,

Sec. 22-157. - Review standards for wetland use permits.

Sec, 22-158. - Consideration of wetland mitigation propasals.

Sec. 22-159. - Wetland use permit conditions of issuance.

Sec. 22-160. - Amendments.

Sec. 22-161. - Reqguest for revaluation of affected property.

Secs, 22-162-—22-170. - Reserved,

Sec. 22-151. - Activities requiring a wetland use permit.

{a) It shall be unlawful for any person to conduct any activity listed below within a protected wetland
without first obtaining a wetland use permit in accordance with the requirements of this division.
Activities governed by this section include, but are not limited to, the following:

(1)

(@)
(3)
(4)
(8)
(6)

Depositing, permitting the placement of fill material or maintaining fill material in a protected
wetland.

Grading in a protected wetland.

Dredging, removing, or permitting the removal of soil or minerals from a protected wetland.
Draining, or causing to be drained, any water into or from a protected wetland.
Constructing, operating, or maintaining any use or development in a protected wetland.
Diverting, obstructing or impeding the flow of water into a protected wetland.

(Code 1974, § 105-8; Ord. No, 2002-07, § 1(105-7), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-152. - Activities not requiring a permit.

{a) The following uses shall be allowed in a wetland without a permit subject to other laws of this state
and the owner's regulation:

(1)
(2)
(3)

Fishing, trapping or hunting.
Swimming or boating.
Hiking.

Meridian Charter Township, {Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 1




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV, - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT

(4) Grazing of animals,

(5) Farming, horticulture, silviculture, lumbering, and ranching activities, including plowing,
irrigation, irrigation ditching, seeding, cultivating, minor drainage, harvesting for the production
of food, fiber, and forest products, or upland soil and water conservation practices. A wetland
altered under this article shall not be used for a purpose other than a purpose described in this
subsection without a permit from the township.

(6) An activity in a wetland that was effectively drained for farming before October 1, 1980, and that
on and after Qclober 1, 1980, has continued to be effectively drained as part of an ongoing
farming operation.

(7) Maintenance or operation of serviceable structures in existence on October 1, 1980, or
constructed pursuant to part 303, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act
(MCL 324.30301 et seq.).

(8) Construction or maintenance of farm or stock ponds.

(9) Maintenance, operation, or improvement which includes the straightening, widening or
deepening of the following which is necessary for the production or harvesting of agricultural
products:

a. An existing private agricultural drain.

b. That portion of a drain legally established pursuant to the drain code of 1856 (MCL 282.1
et seq.) which has been constructed or improved for drainage purposes.

c. A drain constructed pursuant to other provisions of part 303 of the Natural Resources and
Weiland Protection Act (MCL 324.30301 et seq.).

(10) Construction or maintenance of farm roads, forest roads, or temporary roads for moving mining
or forestry equipment, if the roads are constructed and maintained in a manner to ensure that
adverse effect on the wetland will be otherwise minimized.

{11) Drainage necessary for the production and harvesting of agricultural products if the wetland is
owned by a person who is engaged in commercial farming and the land is to be used for the
production and harvesting of agricultural products. Except as otherwise provided in part 303 of
the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act {MCL 324.30301 et seq.), a wetland
improved under this subsection after October 1, 1980, shall not be used for nonfarming
purposes without a permit from the state department of environmental quality. This subsection
shall not apply to a wetland which is contiguous to a lake or stream, or to a tributary of a lake or
stream, or to a wetland which the state department of environmental quality has determined by
clear and convincing evidence fo be a wetland which is necessary to be preserved for the public
interest, in which case a permit shall be required.

(12) Maintenance or improvement of public streets, highways or roads, within the right-of-way and in
such a manner as o ensure that any adverse effect on the wetland will be otherwise minimized.
Maintenance or improvement does not include adding extra lanes; or deviating from the existing
location of the street, highway, or road.

(13) Maintenance, repair, or operation of gas or oil pipelines and construction of gas or oil pipefines
having a diameter of six inches or less, if the pipelines are constructed, maintained, or repaired
in a manner to ensure that any adverse effect on the wetland will be otherwise minimized.

(14) Maintenance, repair, or operation of electric transmission and distribution power lines and
construction of distribution power lines, if the distribution power lines are constructed,

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.)}, Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 2




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT

maintained, or repaired in a manner to ensure that any adverse effect on the wetland will be
otherwise minimized.

(15) Operation or maintenance, including reconstruction of recently damaged parts, of serviceable
dikes and levees in existence on Qctober 1, 1980, or constructed pursuant to part 303 of the
Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (MCL 324.30301 et seq.).

{16) Construction of iron and copper mining tailings basins and water storage areas.
(17) A wetland that is incidentally created as a result of one or more of the following activities:

a, Excavation for mineral or sand mining, if the area was not a wetland before excavation.
This exemption does not include a wetland on or adjacent to a water body of one acre or
more in size.

b. Construction and operation of a water treatment pond or lagoon in compliance with the
requirements of state or federal water pollution control regulations.

c. A diked area associated with a landfill if the landfill complies with the terms of the landfill
construction permit and if the diked area was not a wetland before diking.

(18) Cranberry beds.

a. The construction of cranberry beds, including associated dikes and water contro! structures
associated with dikes, such as headgates, weirs, and drop inlet structures shall be
considered a water-dependent activily.

b. The following activities associated with cranberry operations are not considered to be
water dependent:

1. The construction of roads, ditches, reservoirs, and pump houses that are used during
cultivation of cranberries.

2. The construction of secondary support faciliies for shipping, storage, packaging,
parking, and similar purposes.

c. The demonstration by an applicant that there is no feasible and prudent alternative to the
construction of cranberry beds, including dikes, is not subject to either of the following
presumptions: :

1. That the feasible and prudent alternatives that do not involve a wetland are available.

2. That a feasible and prudent alternative that does not affect a wetland will have less
adverse effects on the aquatic ecosystem.

(Code 1974, § 105-7; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-8), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-153. - Relationship to state and federal permits.
Whenever persons requesting a wetland use permit are also subject to state and/or federal permit
requirements, the following shall apply:

(1) The township shall have jurisdiction for the regulation of wetlands under this article concurrent
with the jurisdiction of the state department of environmental quality.

(2) Approvals under this division shall not relieve a person of the need to obtain a permit from the
state department of environmental quality and/or the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, if required.

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.}, Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 3




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2, - PERMIT

(3} Issuance of a permit by the state department of environmental quality andfor the U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers shall not relieve a person of the need to obtain approval under this division,
if applicable.

(Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-4), 8-20-2002)

Sec. 22-154. - Application requirements for wetland use permits.

(a)

(b)

Application for approval, appeal, and issuance of wetland use permits shall be concurrent with the
application for approval, appeal, and issuance of other necessary township approvals. The applicant
for a wetland use permit shall submit the following to the director of community planning and
development.

(1) An application completed in full, on a form supplied by the state department of environmental
quality and made available by the township with such other information as required by the
director of community planning and development.

{2) Wetland delineation documentation prepared by the township environmental consultant
pursuant fo_section 22-122(1) or wetland delineation documentation prepared by a qualified
wetland professional or wetland consultant in accordance with the requirements listed in_section
22-122(2), including verification by the township environmental consultant.

(3) Soil erosion and stormwater management plans with runoff calculations. The plans shall be
prepared and sealed by a professional engineer licensed by the State of Michigan.

{4) A mitigation plan, which complies with all federal, state and local laws, if the proposed activity
will result in the loss of wetland resources.

The applicant may elect to have the application processed under the following procedure:

(1) The wetland application shall be reviewed immediately, either prior to or concurrent with the
review of the proposed land use review, with the understanding that the land use review may
not be completed at the time a decision is rendered on the wetland appllcatlon Election of this
alternative may require a reopening of the wetland application if the land use approval is
inconsistent with the wetland approval.

(Code 1974, § 105-10; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-10), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-155. - Method of review of wetland use permit application.

(@)

The director of community planning and development shall ensure that all required information
including a wetland delineation and payment of a fee has been submitted. If an application is not
complete, it shall not be processed until the applicant provides all of the required information to the
department of community ptanning and development. The receipt of a complete application shall
constitute permission from the owner to conduct an on-site investigation.

Upon receipt of a complete application, the director of community planning and development shall:
(1) Transmit one copy of the application to the state department of environmental quality.

(2) Cause to be published a notice of the application and the date and time for submission of
written public comments.

(3) Transmit one copy of the application and supporting materials to the township environmental
consultant to confirm the boundaries of the wetland and to review the proposal in light of the

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page d




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT

purpose and review standards of section 22-157 of this article and other applicable sections of
this article.

(c) The township environmental consultant shall prepare and transmit a report and recommendation to
the director of community planning and development documenting the review required by subsection
{b)(3) of this section.

The following process shall apply to wefland use permit decisions by the director of community
planning and development;

(d)

{e)

(N

(6)

{7)

For wetland use permit applications submitted in conjunction with activities that do not require
approval by the planning commission and/or township board, the director of community planning
and development shall approve, approve with conditions or deny the application within 90 days
after receipt of a complete application,

The director of community planning and development shall transmit application materials and
the report and recommendation prepared by the township environmental consuitant o the
environmental commission. The environmental commission may review the materials and
transmit comments for consideration to the director of community planning and development.

The applicant shall post a notice of the wetland use permit application on a form provided by the
township, on the subject property within five days of submittal of a complete application.

Persons wishing to comment on the application must submit their comments in writing fo the
director of community planning and development prior to the date and time set in the notice.
Persons wishing to receive notice of the director of community planning and development's
decision must submit a written request to the director of community planning and development.

The director of community planning and development's decision shall he made only after
reviewing the report and recommendation from the township environmental consultant, written
public comments, and any comments submitted by the environmental commission.

When a wetland use permit is approved, approved with conditions, or denied by the director of
community planning and development, written notice shall be sent to the applicant and to all
persons who have requested notice of the director of community planning and development's
decision. The denial of a permit shall be accompanied by a written reason cf denial.

A permit approved by the director of community planning and development shall not be issued
or effective until_10 calendar days following the date of the approval and compliance with
section 22-159(c).

The following process shall apply to appeals of decisions made by the director of community
planning and development or planning commission:

(1)

@)

Any interested person may appeal a declsion by the director of community planning and
development or planning commission, as applicable, to approve, approve with conditions, or
deny a wetland use permit to the township board by filing a wrilten statement containing the
specific reasons for the appeal and setting forth the facts establishing status as an interested
person. This written statement must be filed with the township clerk within_10 calendar days
following the date of decision. The timely filing of a statement salisfying the requirements of this
provision shall have the effect of staying the permit pending the township board's decision on
appeal.

The township board shall determine whether an individual pursuing an appeal is an interested
person as defined by this article before addressing the merits of that appeal.

Meridian Charter Township, {Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 5




(f)

(3)
(4)

(%)

- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT

The township board shall hold a hearing on the appeal, which shall be open to public comment,
and shall include opportunity for the appealing party to present their appeal.

Notice of the time and place for consideration of an appeal shall be placed in a newspaper of
general circulation in the township not less than five days prior to the date of the hearing. A
notice shall also be sent by mail or personal delivery to the owners of the property considered in
the appeal and to all owners listed on the most recent tax roll of real property within 500 feet of
the houndary of the property in question. Such notice shall be sent not less than five days prior
to the hearing.

The township board shall affirm, affirm with conditions, or reverse the decision of the planning
commission or director of community planning and development. The board's decision shall be
based on written findings.

The following process shall apply to wetland use permit decisions by the township board and
planning commission:

(1)

©)

4

()

()

Wetland use permit applications submitted in conjunciion with a related land development
activity shall be decided by the same entity that decides the related land development activity
consistent with part 303 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (MCL
324.30301 et seq.). The director of community planning and development shall transmit
application materials and the report and recommendation prepared by the township
environmental consultant to the township board, planning commission, and the environmental
commission, The environmental commission may review the materials and provide comments
for consideration by the township board or planning commission, as applicable.

After review and study of the application materials, the township environmental consuitant's
report and recommendation, and comments from the environmental commission, the township
board or planning commission, as applicable, shall hold one public hearing after publication in a
newspaper of general circulation in the township not less than 15 days prior to the date of the
hearing. Such notice shall indicate the place, time and subject of the hearing and the place and
time the proposed wetland use permit may be examinad. The wetland use permit hearing may
be held in conjunction with a review of the related land use request.

The notice shall be sent by mail or personal delivery to the owners of property for which
approval is being considered and to all owners of property, as listed on the most recent tax roll,
within 500 feet of the boundary of the property in question. Notification need not be given to
more than one occupant of a structure, except that if a structure contains more than one
dwelling unit or spatial area owned or leased by different persons, one occupant of each unit
shall recelve notice. In the case of a single structure containing more than four dwelling units,
notice may be given to the manager or owner of the structure, who shall be requested fo post
the notice at the primary entrance fo the structure. A notice containing the time, date, place and
purpose of the hearing shall be posted by the applicant on a form provided by the townshtp, on
the subject property at least 15 days prior to the hearing.

After completing the review and holding one public hearing, if so required, the township board or
planning commission shall approve, approve with conditions cor deny the application within 80
days after receipt of an application, in accordance with this division. :

Wiritten notice shall be sent to the applicant upon approval, approval with conditions or denial of
a wetland use permit by the township board or planning commission. The denial of a permit
shall be accompanied by a written reason for denial.

A permit approved by the township board or planning commission shall not be issued or
effective untif_10 calendar days following the date of the approval and compliance with_section
22-159(c).

Meridian Charter Township, {Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 6




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV, - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT

(Code 1974, § 105-11; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-11), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2003-11, § 2, 7-6-2003:
Ord. No. 2008-04, §§ 1, 2, 9-25-2006; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-156. - Criteria for wetlands under two acres in size.

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Where an applicant proposes to perform a regulated activity in a protected wetland less than two
acres in size, the director of community planning and development shall be so advised in writing. The
director of community planning and development shall forward the location and other information
concerning the wetland to the township environmental consultant, who shall issue a preliminary
finding as to whether one or more of the following criteria are likely to apply to the welland:

(1) The welland supports state or federal endangered or threatened plants, fish, or wildlife
appearing on a list specified in part 365 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection
Act (MCL 324.36501 et seq.).

(2) The wetland represents what is identified as a locally rare or unique ecosystem.
(3) The wetland supports plants or animals of an identified local importance.
(4) The wetland provides groundwater recharge documented by a public agency.

(5) The wetland provides flood and storm control by the hydrologic absorption and storage capacity
of the wettand.

(8) The wetland provides wildlife habitat by providing breeding, nesting, or feeding grounds or cover
for forms of wildlife or waterfow!, including migratory waterfow!l and rare, threatened, or
endangered wildlife species.

{7) The wetland provides protection of subsurface water resources and provision of valuable
watersheds and recharging groundwater supplies.

(8) The wetland provides pollution treatment by serving as a biological and chemical oxidation
basin.

(9) The wetland provides erosion control by serving as a sedimentation area and filtering basin,
absorbing silt and organic matter.

(10) The wetland provides sources of nutrients in water food cycles and nursery grounds and
sanctuaries for fish.

The township environmental consultant's report shall be forwarded to the township board, which
shall determine whether a wetland use permit application meeting the requirements of section 22-
154 shall be required, based on a finding that the wetland is essential to the preservation of the
natural resources of the township. Such determination shall be based on a finding that one or more
of the criteria set forth in subsection (a) of this section are met.

If the township board determines that the wetland is not essential to the preservation of the natural
resources of the township, the township board's decision shali be so noted on the township wetland
inventory map at the time it is amended. The requested activity shall be approved subject to all other
applicable laws and regulations.

When a wetland under two acres in size has been determined to be essential to the natural
resources of the township and the township has found that one or more of the criteria set forth in
subsection (a) of this section exist at the site, the township shall notify the applicant in writing, stating
the reasons for determining the wetland fo be essential to the preservation of the natural resources.

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.}, Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 7




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT

(e) After determining that a wetland less than two acres in size is essential to the preservation of the
natural resources of the township, the wetland use permit application shall be reviewed according to
the standards in_section 22-157

(Code 1974, § 105-12; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-12), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-157. - Review standards for wetland use permits.

The criteria to evaluate wetland use permits under this division and {o determine whether a permit is
granted are as follows;

(1)

(3)

A permit for any activity listed in_section 22-151 shall not be approved unless the proposed
activity is in the public interest, the permit is necessary {o realize the benefits derived from the
activity, and the proposed activity is otherwise lawful in all respects. Public input shall be
evatuated in approving, approving with conditions, or denying the application. The reasonable
use of the property involved in accordance with applicable local ordinances and state law shall
also be considered,

In determining whether the proposed activity is in the public interest, the benefit which
reasonably may be expected to accrue from the proposed activity shall be balanced against the
reasonably foreseeable detriments of the activity. The decision shall reflect the national, state,
and local concern for the protection of natural resources from pollution, impairment, and
deslruction. The following general criteria shall be considered:

a. The relative extent of the public and private need for the proposed activity.

b. The availability of feasible and prudent alternative locations and methods to accomplish the
expected benesfits from the activity.

c. The extent and permanence of the beneficial or detrimental effects which the proposed
activity may have on the public and private uses to which the area is suited, including the
benefits the wetlands provide.

d. The probable impact of each proposal in relation to the cumulative effect created by other
existing and anticipated activities in the watershed.

e. The probable impact on recognized historic, cuitural, scenic, ecological, or recreational
values and on the public health or safety, or fish or wildlife.

f.  Economic value, both public and private, of the proposed land change to the general
township area.

g. The size and quality of the wetland being considered.

h.  The findings of necessity for the proposed activity which have been made by other
agencies.

L. Amount of wetland remaining in the general area and proximity to a waterway.
i Proximity to any water body.
k.  Extent to which upland soil erosion adjacent to the protected wetland is controlied.

A wettand use permit shall not be issued unless it is shown that an unacceptable disruption wil
not result to the aquatic resources. In determining whether a disruption to the aquatic resources
is unacceptable, the benefits outlined in_section 22-117 and the criteria set forth in subsection
(2} of this section shall be considered. A permit shall not be issued unless the applicant also
shows either of the following:

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.}, Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 8




(4)
(%)

()

- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV, - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT

a. The proposed activity is primarily dependent upon being located in the wetland; or
b. A feasible and prudent alternative does not exist.
Failure to submit a complete application may be reason for denial of a wetland use permit.

White determining the expected benefits of a proposed wetland use permit and its alternatives,
an area not presently owned by the applicant which could reasonably be obtained, utilized,
expanded, or managed in order fo fuifill the basic purpose of the proposed activity may be
considered as a feasible and prudent alternative for permitted activities.

An alternative that entails higher costs, as described in R 281.922a(11) of the Michigan
Administrative Code is not feasible and prudent if those higher costs are unreasonable. In
determining whether such costs are unreasonable, the director of community planning and
development, planning commission, or township board whichever is applicable shall consider
both of the following: ‘

a. The relation of the increased cost to the overall scope and cost of the project.

b.  Whether the projected cost is substantially greater than the costs normally associated with
the particular type of project.

Following approval of the application, a wetland use permit shall be issued upon determination
that ail other requirements of the ordinance and law have been met, including site plan, plat or
fand use approval, as applicable, and including issuance of a permit by the state department of
environmental quality if required under MCL 324.30301 et seq. In cases where a stale
department of environmental quality permit allows activities not permitted by the wetland use
permit approval granted under this section, the restrictions of the approval granted under this
section shall govern.

(Code 1974, § 105-13; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1 (105-13), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-
2011)

Sec. 22-158. - Conéideration of wetland mitigation proposals.

To ensure no net loss of wetlands in the township, mitigation shall be required in instances where
there are losses of wetland resources. The township environmental consuitant shall review an applicant’s
mitigation plan and transmit a recommendation to the director of community ptanning and development.
The director of community planning and development, planning commission, or township board, as
applicable shall review the applicant's mitigation plan and consider the township environmentat
consultant's recommendation as part of the wetland use permit review process. A mitigation plan, if
required, shall be approved as part of the wetland use permit decision. Mitigation shall not be considered
a substitute for making all prudent attempts to avoid wetiand impacts.

M

(2)

Prior to considering a proposal for wetland mitigation, it must be shown that it is practical to
replace the wetland resource values which will be impacted, inciuding flood prevention, wildlife
habitat, groundwater resource protection and recharge, pollution freatment, erosion control,
nutrient sources, aesthetics, recreation, open space and any other values identified.

If determined by the township environmental consultant that the requirements of subsection (1)
of this section are met, the following criteria shall be considered when reviewing an applicant's
mitigation propesal:

a. Mitigation shall be provided on site where practical and beneficial to the wetland resources.
If on-site mitigation is not practical and beneficial, then mitigation in the immediate vicinity,

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.)}, Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 9




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV. - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT

within the same watershed of the permitted activity may be considered. Only if ali of these
options are impractical shall mitigation be considered elsewhere.

b. Any proposal shall ensure that there will be no net loss to the wetland resource values.
¢. The mitigation plan must comply will all applicable federal, state, and local laws.
d. A plan to monitor preserved and replacement wetlands.

(3) Wetland mitigation and monitoring plans shall become conditions to the wetland use permit and
shall be the responsibility of the applicant or its successors.

(4) Financial assurances that mitigation is accomplished as specified by the permit condition may
be required by the director of community planning and development, planning commission, or
township board, as applicable. .

(5) Any mitigation activity shalli be completed hefore initiation of other permitted activities, unless a
phased concurrent schedule can be agreed upon between the director of community planning
and development, planning commission, or township board, as applicable, and the applicant.

(6) Wetland mitigation plans that create less than two acre wetlands shall meet one of the
conditions listed in subsection 22-156(a).

(Code 1974, § 105-14; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-14), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-159. - Wetland use permit conditions of issuance.

(@)

(b}

€)

(f)

The director of community planning and development, planning commission, or township board, as
applicable, shall attach any reasonable conditions considered necessary to ensure that the intent of
this article will be fulfilled, to minimize or mitigate damage or impairment to, encroachment in, or
interference with natural resources and processes within the protected wetland, or to otherwise
improve or maintain the water quality.

The director of community planning and development, planning commission, or township board shall
fix a reasonable time for the undertaking and completion of all activities and structures, as
applicable.

Following the approval of the wetland use permit application, a permit shall be issued upon
determination that all other requirements of the ordinance and law have been met, including site
plan, plat or land use approvals, as applicable, and including issuance of required permits by the
county or the state department of environmental quality under part 303 of the Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection Act (MCL 324.30301 et seq.).

The director of communily planning and development, planning commission, or township board, as
applicable, upon issuance of a wetland use permit, may require the applicant to file with the township
treasurer cash, certified check, or an irrevocable bank letter of credit in an amount the director of
community planning and development, planning commission or township board, as applicable,
determines is necessary to ensure compliance with the wetland use permit approval conditions and
this article,

At no time shall the director of community planning and development, planning commission, or
township board, as applicable, issue a wetland use permit that allows a more extensive alteration of
the wetland than permitted by state or federal law.

Wetland use permits for seasonal operations need not be renewed annually unless otherwise stated
in the permit.

Meridian Charter Township, {Ingham Co.}, Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 10




(k)

v

- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV, - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT

Any change that increases the size or scope of the operation and that affects the criteria considered
in approving the permit, as determined by the director of community planning and development,
planning commission, or township board, as applicable, shall require the filing of a new wetland use
permit application.

Any temporary, seasonal, or permanent operation that is discontinued for two years or two seasons
shall be presumed to have been abandoned and the wetland use permit automatically voided.

Any permit granted under this division may be revoked or suspended by the township board, after
notice and an opportunity for a hearing, for any of the following causes;

(1) A violation of a condition of the permit.
(2) Misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose relevant facts in the application.
(3) Achange in a condition that requires a temporary or permanent change in the activity.

An applicant who has received a wetland use permit under this division shall comply with the
following in connection with any construction or other activity on the property for which the wetland
use permit has been issued:

(1) Maintain all soil erosion control structures and measures, including, but not limited 1o, silt
fences, straw bale berms, and sediment traps. The permitiee shall provide for periodic
inspections throughout the duration of the project.

{2} Maintain clear delineation of the protected wetlands, so marked by the township environmental
consultant during the on-site inspection, so that such locations are visible to all construction
workers.

(3) Post on the site, prior to commencement of work on the site and continuing throughout the
duration of the project, a copy of the approved wetland use permit containing the conditions of
issuance, in a conspicuous manner stich that the wording of such permit is available for public
inspection.

{4) Provide to the township written notice of commencement prior to work beginning on the site.

The wetland use permit shall remain effective for a time period coincidental with any other land use
permit reviewed and approved concurrent with the wetland use permit. If applied for prior to the
expiration date and concurrent with the expiring land use permit, the applicant may be granted an
extension that corresponds to additional time granted for the underlying land use permit. Extensions
shall be approved by the same person or body that made the original decision. The maximum
number of extensions shall coincide with the maximum number allowed for the underlying land use
permit,

Where there is no other activity or permit involved, the wetland use permit shall remain effective for
two years. One extension may be granted for a period not to exceed 12 months from the expiration
date of the wetland use permit if requested in writing prior to the expiration date. An extension shall
be reviewed and approved or denied in writing by the same person or hody that made the original
decision.

(Code 1974, § 105-15; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1{105-156), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-160. - Amendments.

(a)

Any applicant who has been granted a wetland use permit may apply for an amendment in writing to
the director of community planning and development.

Meridian Charter Township, (Ingham Co.}, Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 11




- CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 22 - ENVIRONMENT
ARTICLE IV, - WETLAND PROTECTION

DIVISION 2, - PERMIT

{b) Amendments {o an approved wetland use permit shall be granted by the same entity that decided
the original wetland use permit in accordance with the procedures and criteria set forth in this
section.

(1) Application. An application for an amended wetland use permit shall be submitted to the director
of community planning and development prior to the expiration date of the existing wetland use
permit.

(2) Public hearing. The application for an amended wetland use permit shall be subject to the same
notices and hearings and all other procedures required for the initial application,

(3) Decision. Prior to deciding the application, the township board, pfanning commission, or director
of community planning and development shall refer the application to the township
environmental consultant for a recomimendation and to the environmental commission for
comments.

(4) Appeals. Appeals of a decision on an amendment by the director of community planning and
development and the planning commission shall follow the criteria established in subsection_ 22-
155(e).

(Code 1974, § 105-17; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-17), 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-15-2011)

Sec. 22-161. - Request for revaluation of affected property.

The owner of any property for which a wetland use permit was applied for under this division and
was denied, upon appeal, by the township board, may request a revaluation of the affected properly by
the township board of review for assessment purposes to defermine its fair market value under the use
restriction. A landowner who is aggrieved by a determination, action, or inacticn under this article may
protest and appeal that determination, action or inaction pursuant to the General Property Tax Act (MCL
211.1 et seq.}).

(Code 1974, § 105-18; Ord. No. 2002-07, § 1(105-18}, 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2011-04, § 1, 3-156-2011)

Secs. 22-162—22-170. - Reserved.

FOOTNOTE(S):

wne {4) ---
State Law reference— Wetland permits, MCL 324.30306 et seq._(Back}

Meridian Charter Township, {Ingham Co.), Michigan, Code of Ordinances Page 12




